
 

 

 
 
Notice of Meeting of 
 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
Monday, 20 November 2023 at 2.00 pm 
 
Sedgemoor Room, Bridgwater House, King 
Square, Bridgwater, TA6 3AR 
 
To: The members of the Licensing Sub-Committee 
 
Chair:  Councillor Marcus Kravis 
 
Councillor Diogo Rodrigues Councillor Brian Smedley 
 

 
For further information about the meeting, including how to join the meeting virtually, 
please contact Democratic Services democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk. 
 
All members of the public are welcome to attend our meetings and ask questions or 
make a statement by giving advance notice in writing or by e-mail to the Monitoring 
Officer at email: democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk by 5pm on Tuesday, 14 
November 2023. 
 
This meeting will be open to the public and press, subject to the passing of any 
resolution under the Local Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A: Access to Information.  
 
The meeting will be webcast and a recording made. 
 
Issued by (the Proper Officer) on Thursday, 2 November 2023 

 

Public Agenda Pack

mailto:democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk


 

 

AGENDA 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee - 2.00 pm Monday, 20 November 2023 
  
Click here to join the online meeting (Pages 5 - 6) 

  
Meeting Guidance Notes (Pages 7 - 10) 

  
1   Apologies for Absence  

 
To receive any apologies for absence. 

  
2   Declarations of Interest  

 
To receive and note any declarations of interests in respect of any matters included 
on the agenda for consideration at this meeting. 

(The other registrable interests of Councillors of Somerset Council, arising from 
membership of City, Town or Parish Councils and other Local Authorities will 
automatically be recorded in the minutes: City, Town & Parish Twin Hatters - 
Somerset Councillors 2023 ) 

  
3   The Village Cafe and Bakery (Pages 11 - 54) 

 
To consider an application for a premises licence for The Village Cafe and Bakery, 
Bath Road, Cheddar, Somerset, BS27 3NA following objections having been 
received. 
  

https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=City%20Town%20%20Parish%20Twin%20Hatters%20-%20Somerset%20Councill&ID=378&RPID=284137
https://democracy.somerset.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=City%20Town%20%20Parish%20Twin%20Hatters%20-%20Somerset%20Councill&ID=378&RPID=284137


Microsoft Teams meeting  

 
 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device  
Click here to join the meeting  
Meeting ID: 353 433 980 228  
Passcode: KY4dDp  
Download Teams | Join on the web 
 
 
Or call in (audio only)  
+44 1823 772277,,545099775#   United Kingdom, Taunton  
Phone Conference ID: 545 099 775#  
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Annex

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OTI2YmY4MzUtYTMxZi00OGI2LWI2MzctZTNiYzhjZmRkMzk3%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22b524f606-f77a-4aa2-8da2-fe70343b0cce%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22728bd2ea-f6fe-44c6-b4e1-0efd686c7cf8%22%7d
https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-teams/download-app
https://www.microsoft.com/microsoft-teams/join-a-meeting
tel:+441823772277,,545099775#


This page is intentionally left blank



Guidance notes for the meeting  

Council Public Meetings  

Provision will be made wherever possible for those who do not need to attend in 

person including the public and press who wish to view the meeting to be able to do 

so virtually.  

Inspection of Papers  

Any person wishing to inspect minutes, reports, or the background papers for any 

item on the agenda should contact Democratic Services at 

democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk or telephone 01823 357628.  

They can also be accessed via the council's website on Committee structure -Modern 

Council (somerset.gov.uk) 

Members' Code of Conduct requirements  

When considering the declaration of interests and their actions as a councillor, 

Members are reminded of the requirements of the Members' Code of Conduct and 

the underpinning Principles of Public Life: Honesty; Integrity; Selflessness; 

Objectivity; Accountability; Openness; Leadership. The Code of Conduct can be 

viewed at: Code of Conduct  

Minutes of the Meeting  

Details of the issues discussed, and recommendations made at the meeting will be 

set out in the minutes, which the Committee will be asked to approve as a correct 

record at its next meeting.  

Exclusion of Press & Public  

If when considering an item on the agenda, the Committee may consider it 

appropriate to pass a resolution under Section l(S)(S)A (4) Schedule 12A of the Local 

Government Act 1972 that the press and public be excluded from the meeting on the 

basis that if they were present during the business to be transacted there would be a 

likelihood of disclosure of exempt information, as defined under the terms of the Act.  

If there are members of the public and press listening to the open part of the 

meeting, then the Democratic Services Officer will, at the appropriate time, ask 

Page 5

Agenda Annex

mailto:democraticservicesteam@somerset.gov.uk


participants to leave the meeting when any exempt or confidential information is 

about to be discussed.  

Recording of meetings  

The Council supports the principles of openness and transparency. It allows filming, 

recording, and taking photographs at its meetings that are open to the public - 

providing this is done in a non-disruptive manner. Members of the public may use 

Facebook and Twitter or other forms of social media to report on proceedings. No 

filming or recording may take place when the press and public are excluded for that 

part of the meeting. 

 

PROCEDURE AT THE HEARING 
 

1. The Chair will open the Hearing and introduce the Sub-Committee and 
Officers. 
They will then ask each Party to introduce themselves. 

 
2. The Chair will confirm that if a Party is not present their 

representation/application will be read and taken into account in reaching the 
decision. 

 
3. The Chair will address any registerable interest arising under the Code of 

Conduct. 
 

4. The Chair will consider any submitted requests from a Party for permission for 
another person to appear at the Hearing. If necessary, the Sub-Committee will 
retire to deliberate before making a decision. 

 
5. The Chair will confirm that the Hearing will take the form of a round-the-table 

discussion led by the Sub-Committee in accordance with this procedure. If all 
Parties present confirm that they have seen and understood the procedure to 
be followed at the Hearing and agree that they are ready to proceed then the 
Hearing shall commence. 

 
6. The Chair will remind everyone that the purpose of the Hearing should be 

borne in mind at all times i.e. To enable those with a right to appear, to 
amplify their written application or representation. It is also to assist the Sub-
Committee to gather evidence and understand the relevant issues. 

Page 6



 
7. The Chair will confirm what advance papers have been received and that these 

have been read. 
 

8. The Chair will make clear that all Parties should only address the Sub-
Committee in relation to matters they have raised in their 
application/representation. Any Party wishing to submit late evidence at the 
Hearing will only be able to do so with the consent of all Parties present and 
with the consent of the Sub-Committee. 

 
9. The Chair will confirm whether all Parties have seen and understood the 

procedure to be followed and are ready to proceed with the Hearing. 
 

10. The Chair will ask the Applicant whether they wish to make any amendments 
to their application with a view to addressing any issues raised by 
representations. 

 
11. Order of Oral Presentation 

 

(a) The Licensing Officer will present their report outlining the details of the 
application/notice/representations received. 
 

(b) Any Party may question the Licensing Officer. 
 

(c) The Members may question the Licensing Officer. 
 

(d) Responsible Authorities will present their case and call any witnesses. 
 

(e) Any Party may question the Responsible Authorities and any witnesses. 
 

(f) Members may question the Responsible Authorities and any witnesses. 
 

(g) Other Person(s) will present their case in turn and call any witnesses. 
 

(h) Any Party may question the Other Person(s). 
 

(i) Members may question the Other Person(s). 
 

(j) The Applicant/Licence Holder will present their case and call any 
witnesses. 

Page 7



 
(k) Any Party may question the Applicant/Licence Holder and any witnesses. 

 
(l) Members may question the Applicant/Licence Holder and any witnesses. 

 
The Chair at their discretion, may change the order of oral presentation at any 
stage, if it is considered to be beneficial to the flow of the hearing. 

 
12. Before moving on to the next Party, the Chair will check there are no further 

points the current Party wishes to make or any further questions that need to 
be put to that Party. 

 
13. The Licensing Officer may present any further information such as proposed 

nonmandatory Conditions deriving from the Operating Schedule or suggested 
by any Party. However, it will remain for the Sub-Committee to determine what 
conditions will apply, if any, should the application be successful. 

 
14. Each Party will be invited to make closing submissions in the following order – 

a. Responsible Authorities 
b. Other Persons 
c. The Applicant 
d. Licensing Officer 

 
15. The Chair will then close the Hearing and the Sub-Committee will retire to 

determine the matter. The Legal Advisor will retire with the Sub-Committee to 
answer any points of law. 

 
16. The Sub-Committee will come to a decision which will be sent to the Applicant 

and all other relevant Parties together with the details of the right to appeal. 
 
NOTE: 
In producing this procedure the following has been considered: - 
The relevant legislation and statutory guidance together with local policies and 
procedures. 
 

Page 8



Decision Report – Licensing Decision 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Application for a Premises Licence  
 
Executive Member: Cllr Federica Smith-Roberts Councillor – Lead Member for 
Housing, Communities and Culture 
Local Members and Division: Cllrs Ben Ferguson and Pauline Ham- Cheddar. 
Lead Officer: Alan Weldon, Licensing & Fraud Manager 
Author: Simon Bawler 
Contact Details: Simon.bawler@somerset.gov.uk 
 
Summary / Background 
 
1. The Hearing is required to determine the application for a Premises licence in 

accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 following receipt of three relevant 
representations by way of objection received from Ms Estelle Cobb, Ms Mia 
Taylor, and Miss N. Sharp 

  
2. The premises subject to the objection is: The Village Cafe and Bakery, Bath 

Road, Cheddar, Somerset, BS27 3NA.  
 
Recommendations 
  
3.  The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to determine the application in 

accordance with the Act and must resolve to do one of the following: 
 

a. To grant the application as applied for 

b. To grant the application with attached conditions. 

c. To grant the application in part. 

d. To grant the application in part with attached conditions. 

e. To refuse the application.  

Reasons for recommendations 
 
4.  The Licensing Sub-Committee is to consider an application for a new Premises 

Licence under the Licensing Act 2003. It is therefore the duty of the Licensing 
Sub-Committee to determine the application with a view to promoting the 
licensing objectives which are: -  

 
• The prevention of crime and disorder 
• public safety 
• The prevention of public nuisance; and 
• The protection of children from harm. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3

mailto:Simon.bawler@somerset.gov.uk


 
5.  The objections in this case refer to Crime & Disorder, Public Nuisance and Public 

safety Licensing Objectives. 
 
Other options considered. 
 
6.  Not applicable. 
 
Links to Council Vision, Business Plan and Medium-Term Financial Strategy 
 
7.  The Council must carry out its functions in accordance with the Act with a view 

to promoting the licensing objectives and this remains the prime consideration of 
this report. 

 
Financial and Risk Implications 
 
8.  There are no financial implications.  
 
9.  There are no significant risks identified providing the granting of a Premises 

Licence is determined correctly, in accordance with the legislation and having 
due regard to the Sedgemoor Licensing Policy. 

 
Legal Implications 
 
10.  The Licensing Officer has determined that the representations submitted by Ms 

Estelle Cobb, Ms Mia Taylor, and Miss N. Sharpe are relevant. It is, therefore, 
the duty of the Sub-Committee to determine the Premises Licence Application 
with regards to the licensing objectives. 

 
11.  The issue for the Licensing Sub-Committee is whether the application as 

submitted, sufficiently promotes the licensing objectives, whether the promotion 
of the licensing objectives requires the application to be granted subject to 
conditions, or whether the application requires it to be rejected because the 
licensing objectives cannot be met by the imposition of conditions. 

 
The applicant and/or objector may appeal against any decision made by the 
Licensing Sub-Committee. Any appeal must be made to the Magistrate’s Court. 

 
HR Implications 
 
12.  None 
 
Other Implications: - 
 
Equalities Implications 
 
13.  None.   
 

  

Page 10



Community Safety Implications  
 
14.  None. 
 
Climate Change and Sustainability Implications  
 
15.  None. 
 
Health and Safety Implications  
 
16.  None.  
 
Health and Wellbeing Implications  
 
17. The Licensing Sub-Committee may consider any factors that would promote 

or, conversely, undermine the licensing objectives.  

Social Value 
 
18. As the contents of this report do not relate to a procurement process, there are 

no social value implications. 

Scrutiny comments / recommendations: 
 
19. This report relates to a statutory function of the Council, which is the 

responsibility of the Licensing & Regulatory Committee (delegated to a Sub-
Committee), so there are no scrutiny comments or recommendations to make. 

 
Background 
 
20.  On 1st October 2023, a Premises Licence application was served on Somerset 

Council by way of the Council’s application process by Mr Sean Battles & 
Jaqueline Lewis T/A CA SGF Hotels LTD, Bath Arms Cottage, Union Street, 
Cheddar, Somerset, BS27 3NA.  

 
The application seeks authorisation for the following licensable activities to take 
place: -   
 
• Sale/supply of alcohol – from 12.00hrs to 22.00hrs (Mon to Sat) and 12.00hrs 

to 18.00hrs (Sun) – On the premises only.  

• Recorded music from 12.00hrs to 22.00hrs (Mon to Sat) and 12.00hrs to 
18.00hrs (Sun) – Internal & External, however the Applicant states in the 
application that during lighter summer days the outside courtyard of 20 covers 
will be utilised but no external music will be played to respect our neighbours.  

A copy of the redacted Premises Licence Application is shown as Appendix A.  
 

Page 11



21. The Premises Licence Application requests that the internal area of the 
premises the Bakery, the Café and an outside courtyard space area are 
licensed for the sale/supply of alcohol and for Recorded music. 

 
22. An objection to the application for a premises licence has been received within 

the permitted timeframe from Ms Estelle Cobb, Ms Mia Taylor, and Miss N. Sharp 
which is attached as Appendix B, Appendix C and Appendix D. 

 

23. Police have agreed a set of conditions and is attached as Appendix E 

 

24. Plans of the Premises are attached as Appendix F.    

25.  Maps of the surrounding area attached as Appendix G. 

Background Papers 
 
26. As identified in the report and below under ‘Appendices’. 

 
Appendices 
 

A. Premises Licence Application - Appendix A. 
B. Representation by Ms Estelle Cobb - Appendix B. 
C. Representation by Ms Mia Taylor. – Appendix C 
D. Representation by Miss N. Sharp – Appendix D 
E. Police have agreed a set of conditions – Appendix E 
F. Plans of the Premises – Appendix F 
G.  Maps of the surrounding area – Appendix G 

Page 12



Appendix A

Page 13



Appendix A

Page 14



Appendix A

Page 15



Appendix A

Page 16



Appendix A

Page 17



Appendix A

Page 18



Appendix A

Page 19



Appendix A

Page 20



Appendix A

Page 21



Appendix A

Page 22



Appendix A

Page 23



Appendix A

Page 24



Appendix A

Page 25



Appendix A

Page 26



Appendix A

Page 27



Appendix A

Page 28



Appendix A

Page 29



Appendix A

Page 30



Appendix A

Page 31



Appendix A

Page 32



Appendix A

Page 33



Appendix A

Page 34



Appendix A

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



From: CobbsOfCheddar ejc <CobbsOfCheddarEJC@outlook.com> 

Sent: 19 October 2023 11:10 

To: Licensing Sedgemoor 

Subject: Objection to request for alcohol licence CAS GF hotels ltd 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up 

Flag Status: Flagged 

Dear sirs 

Please note that I wish to object to the licencing application for the Village Bakery & Cafe , 

Bath street ,Cheddar. 

My flat is above Cobb's of Cheddar , The Cross  Union  Street. BS27 3aa. 

My access to my parking space within the rear yard of Cobb's of Cheddar is as per my lease 

through  

the small car park of 11 spaces , that now serves both the Bath Arms and The village bakery 

& cafe .  

Customers to both premises frequently park out of the spaces when unable to find a parking 

space .  

This causes the right of access to be blocked or difficult to negotiate. With an increase of 

hours  

open, hence an increase of customers for both premises , this will give rise to this happening 

more  

frequently. 

My balcony , which I sit out on , overlooks the small car park , I accept that it is already 

subject to  

the noise of the customers and vehicles from the bath arms , but am opposed to what will be 

an  

increase in noise from customers for both premises , when I have a right to enjoy peace and 

quiet in  

Appendix B

Page 37



my home without excessive disturbance from others . This is also applicable to the front of 

the flat  

which when the windows are open in good weather, will have the disturbance from the cafe 

and an  

increase of footfall in the area for myself and other residents around the cafe , causing late 

night  

disturbance and infact already closer residents to the cafe not able to enjoy the peace of 

their  

gardens anymore due to the noise from the cafe courtyard .  

 

Kind regards 

Estelle Cobb 

Appendix B

Page 38



Mia Taylor, 
Flat 2, Myrtle House, 
Bath Street,  
Cheddar,  
BS27 3AA 

miataylor@medifest.co.uk 

07557115610 

11.10.23 

Somerset Council, 
Licencing,  
Bridgwater House, 
King Square,  
Bridgwater,  
TA6 3AR 

RE: Objection to Licence Application for Sale of Alcohol until 10pm at The Village 
Café and Bakery 

Dear Somerset Council, 

I am writing to formally object to the licensing application regarding the sale of 
alcohol until 10pm at the business located below my residence. After careful 
consideration of the proposal and its potential impact on the residents of Myrtle 
House, I believe 
there are several significant concerns that need to be addressed before any decision 
is made. 

• Disturbance and Noise: The extended hours for the sale of alcohol will
undoubtedly lead to an increase in noise levels, disturbances, and the
potential for antisocial behaviour in the vicinity. This would significantly disrupt
the peace
and tranquillity of our residential building, particularly during the evening
hours.

• Impact on Residential Quality of Life: As a resident living directly above the
business, I am deeply concerned about the adverse effects this extended
alcohol licence could have on my quality of life. The ability to enjoy a peaceful
and
quiet living environment is of paramount importance.

Appendix Appendix C

Page 39

mailto:miataylor@medifest.co.uk


• Building Structure and Noise Permeability: It is important to note that the 
building in question is an older structure with single-glazed windows. This 
characteristic makes it particularly susceptible to noise infiltration, amplifying 
the 
potential disturbance caused by extended hours of alcohol sales. Additionally, 
noise generated from the premises below can be heard through the floor by 
the premises above, further compounding the potential impact. 

• Excessive Days and Hours: According to the application, the request for the 
sale of alcohol until 10pm spans from Monday to Saturday, and until 6pm on 
Sunday. This extensive schedule, covering every day of the week, appears 
excessive and 
may not be warranted for the nature of the establishment in question. 

• Community Wellbeing: I understand the need for business to thrive and I am 
willing to consider this application under certain conditions. I am happy for the 
business in question to sell alcohol as a takeaway option, such as sealed 
bottles 
of wine, beer, or spirits. Moreover, I am amenable to the idea of alcohol sales 
on the premises, so long as it does not affect residents’ daily life or cause 
disturbances. This includes ensuring that noise levels are kept at a 
reasonable level and with an 
assurance that no drinking of alcohol is permitted in the evening. This 
restriction would help maintain the peaceful atmosphere of the neighbourhood 
and safeguard the well-being of its residents. The current closing time of the 
premises is 4pm, and I question 
why this needs to be extended beyond this hour. If alcohol sales were 
restricted to 4pm and no later, I would be content this with arrangement. 

• Redundancy of Service: It is worth noting that there is an existing pub which 
is managed – possibly owned although of this I am unsure – by the same 
company, located directly across the road. This popular establishment already 
caters to 
the community’s need for a place to consume alcohol. I strongly question the 
necessity for this additional premises to sell alcohol for consumption on site, 
particularly until a late hour. Could the proposed events not be hosted at their 
existing licensed 
establishment? This would not only preserve the peaceful environment of our 
building but would also allow the company to continue offering such events 
without causing disruption to our residence. 

  
I must also express my dismay at having only discovered this licencing request 
through a notice posted on the bakery door. I understand that this is procedure, but 
as long-term residents of Myrtle House and considering the close proximity to the 
residential 
properties, I believe it would have been correct to receive direct and official 
notification of the proposed change. My neighbour, who shares concerns about this 
application, was also not aware of the proposed changes - of which affect the entire 
building 
- until I informed her, despite the notices being displayed. 
  

Appendix Appendix C

Page 40



Finally, I would appreciate being kept informed of any progress on this application, 
and any public hearings or meetings regarding it. I am happy to participate and 
provide further input if necessary. 
  
Thank you for your attention to this matter. 
  
Sincerely, 
  
Mia Taylor 
  
 

Appendix Appendix C

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



乙し、虹い。ー

、い 、 s 一し( と
Appendix D

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Ian Hambidge <Ian.Hambidge@avonandsomerset.police.uk> 

Sent: 20 October 2023 12:18 

To: Licensing Sedgemoor 

Cc: Nicola King 

Subject: FW: OED /29/10/23, Premises Licence Application, The Village Cafe & 

Bakery, Cheddar. 

Good Afternoon Licensing Sedgemoor 

In relation to the above Premises Licence Application, please note the below conditions as 

agreed with  

the applicant. In view of these conditions as agreed, I may confirm the police have no 

representations to  

make in respect of this application. 

Would you be kind enough to ensure the conditions are attached to the Licence as required, 

and also  

would you also be kind enough to acknowledge receipt of this e-mail? 

Thank you 

Kind regards 

Ian Hambidge 7422 

Licensing Support 

Somerset Licensing Team, Avon and Somerset Police  

Crewkerne Police Station, South Street, Crewkerne, Somerste. TA18 8AA 

Mob 07889 656920 

Email Ian.Hambidge@avonandsomerset.police.uk 

www.avonandsomerset.police.uk  | Follow us on Twitter and Facebook 

Appendix E

Page 45



 

  

 

CCTV Send to Officer   You will need Officer Collar Number and Crime Reference Number 

https://avonandsomerset.police.uk/upload 

 

 

 

From: Bath Arms <info@batharms.com>   

Sent: Friday, October 20, 2023 11:28 AM  

To: Ian Hambidge <Ian.Hambidge@avonandsomerset.police.uk>  

Cc: info@cafeandbakery.co.uk; 'Sean Denny' <sean.denny32@gmail.com>; 

seanbattles@me.com  

Subject: Premises Licence Application, The Village Cafe & Bakery, Cheddar. 

 

 

You don't often get email from info@batharms.com. Learn why this is important 

 

 

Hello Ian  

 

Thank you for your email. 

We very much appreciate your support on this matter. 

We agree with and will ensure the conditions stated are part of our ongoing operating  

procedures. 

We will have a logbook onsite which will include; 

 

 

Appendix E

Page 46



1. Data Controller sign off sheet for the comprehensive surveillance system as 

suggested. 

2. A register for Challenge 25 policy & intoxication refusals. 

3. Drugs policy and any items discovered or seized. 

4. An outdoor management yard policy in respect of hours of operation, capacity, 

smoking,  

control of alcohol and noise. 

5. An incident register for incidents occurring on the premises or outside and associated 

with the  

premises. 

6. Induction and training records for all staff serving alcohol including refusal & illegal 

drug use  

awareness.  

7. A Safeguarding Policy. 

8. Training records to include the off sales only policy for the Bakery. 

 

 

I will forward all the relevant documents for your reference next week. 

 

Speak soon  

Sean  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix E

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix F

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 OS AC0000861332. Aerial photography: © Bluesky International Ltd and Getmapping Plc 2023.

You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

This data is subject to terms and conditions: https://www.somerset.gov.uk/interactive-mapping-terms-and-conditions/

Appendix G

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 Click here to join the online meeting
	 Meeting Guidance Notes
	3 The Village Cafe and Bakery
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E
	Appendix F
	Appendix G




